ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPCORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 5, 2009
1: 03 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy W1l son, Chair
Representative Craig Johnson, Vice Chair
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
Representati ve Cat hy Engstrom Miunoz
Representati ve M ke Doogan
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Representative John Harris
COW TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION & PUBLIC FACILITIES
(DOT&PF) - TRANSPORTATI ON ASPECTS OF THE FEDERAL STI MJLUS
PACKAGE

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REG STER

FRANK RI CHARDS, Deputy Commi ssi oner

Ofice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT/PF)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions during a PowerPoint
presentation on the Transportation Aspects of the Federal
Sti nmul us Package.

RON KI NG

Capi tal Prograns

Di vi sion of Program Devel opnent

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the discussion of
the Transportation Aspects of the Federal Stinulus Package.

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE -1- February 5, 2009



JEFF OTTESEN, Director

Di vi sion of Program Devel opnent

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussion of the Transportation Aspects of the Federal Stimnulus
Package.

CHRI STI NE KLEI'N, Deputy Conmmi ssioner of Aviation

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnment of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF)
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the discussion of
the Transportation Aspects of the Federal Stinulus Package.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1: 03: 37 PM

CHAIR PEGGY WLSON called the House Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:03 p.m Represent ati ves
Johansen, Doogan, Johnson, and WIson were present at the cal
to order. Representatives Minoz and G uenberg arrived as the
meeti ng was in progress.

OVERVI EW OF THE TRANSPORATI ON ASPECTS OF THE FEDERAL STl MULUS
PACKAGE

1: 03: 56 PM

Chair WIson announced that the only order of business would be
a presentation and overview of the Transportation Aspects of the
Federal Stinulus Package by Departnment of Transportation &
Public Facilities (DOT&PF).

1: 05: 14 PM

FRANK RI CHARDS, Deputy Conmm ssioner, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT/PF), began
his presentation by informng nenbers that the Congress is
appropriating approximately a year’s worth of transportation

spending in approximately two weeks. He outlined funding
| evel s, and not ed di ff erences in the U. S House of
Representatives and the U S. Senate versions of the federal
econom c stinmulus package in HR 1. He nentioned that the

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&F) has
been inpacted due to the tinme zone differences between Al aska

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 2- February 5, 2009



and Washington D.C area. He explained that the Congress has
i nposed stringent rules that the DOT&PF nust adhere to for use
of the economc stimulus package, as well as the significant
chal l enges the departnment will have to “get the projects out on
the street” in a tinely fashion. He offered that he will also
cover the selection process, and sone specific fund sources that
t he Congress has designated that are outside of the DOT&PF.

MR. RICHARDS offered that his presentation outlines inpacts for
their consultants, who assist the DOI&F in developing the

pr oj ects. He offered that the goal of the econom c stinulus
funding is to revitalize the econony and put Al askans to work on
the backlog of transportation infrastructure. He enphasized

that sone projects have not been conpleted due to the reductions
in federal funding over the past few years in the Federal
H ghway Adm nistration (FWHA), as well as inflationary inpacts
on the cost of construction materials. He stressed the grow ng
deferred mai ntenance backlog across the nodes that affect the

hi ghway, aviation, ports, and harbor prograns as well as
facilities. He opined that all the DOT&PF nmaintenance has
suffered due to funding problenms. He opined that the additiona
nmonies in the federal economc stimulus funding will be a great

help to Alaska, and could relieve sone of the DOT&PF s backl ogs.
He nentioned the DOT&PF previously has identified infrastructure
needed for a proposed gasline to the |egislature.

1: 09: 06 PM

MR. RICHARDS offered to explain the “rules of the road.” He
expl ained that the federal econom c stinulus package funds wll
conme through the existing fornula prograns. The Congress wl|

not bypass the existing nodal transportation prograns that are
in place under the federal highway, transit, or aviation

adm ni strations, he highlighted. He reiterated that the
“stinmulus package” will follow existing formulas in place and
will flow to the state DOT&PF s for distribution. He stressed
that the DOT&PF nust follow all federal regulations and
restrictions on the wuse of the funds. That rmeans the
devel opment of those funds nmust also be done in conpliance with
the federal processes. He further stressed that Congress did

not relax rules such as the National Environnmental Policy Act of
1969 (NEPA) process for environnmental concerns, the Uniform
Process for Right-of-Way purchases, or the wetlands permt
process. Therefore, the DOT&PF nust conply with all the federa
| aws, which poses challenges for the departnment, he related.
Lastly, he stressed that the federal |egislation enphasizes that

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 3- February 5, 2009



the “stimulus” nonies are to be spent in areas that have been
deened econom cally di stressed regions.

1:10: 53 PM

MR. RICHARDS, in response to Chair WIson, answered that the
Congress did not want to relax any rules since “fast action” has
been deened necessary. Thus, Congressional |eadership wanted to
avoi d any debate that m ght have “tied up the bill.”

1:11: 30 PM
MR. RICHARDS, in response to Representative Johnson, explained

that if the project is a Federal H ghways Adm nistration (FHM)
project, the state already adheres to the federal guidelines

with respect to the environnental, right-of-way (ROWN, and
desi gn processes. Thus, the DOI&F cannot select a state
project that has not adhered to the process. Therefore, a
[imted nunber of projects are available for the federal
economc  “stimulus funding.” In further response to

Representative Johnson, M. R chards agreed that the projects
funded from the general fund (GF) are also excluded from the
econom ¢ stinulus funding. He pointed out that one benefit of
using the G- funding is that many of the processes can be done
in parallel tracks, such as preparing the environnental docunent
at the sanme tine that the design work is being done. He al so
mentioned that with G- projects, the DOT&PF can purchase ROW as
it perfornms the design work. Thus, the projects can quickly
advance through the developnment stages up to the point of
construction. However, wunder the federal process the project
must proceed in a specific sequence consisting of environnental,
design, and ROW conponents prior to construction. Thus, the
projects currently under consideration are those projects that
have already been subject to the State Transportation
| mprovenent Program (STIP) process. M. Richards identified the
STIP as part of the process that the DOI&F uses to seek
| egi slative authority to proceed through the design steps.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether any projects that the SOA
is currently funding could be funded by the federal stinulus
funds i nstead.

MR. RICHARDS answered no, that each governor nust certify that
he/she will not renpve state nonies and insert federal funds
i nst ead.

1: 15: 26 PM

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 4- February 5, 2009



MR. RICHARDS, in response to Representative Johnson, explained
that the Congress, in the House version, HR 1, encourages
projects to be selected for economically distressed areas. He
further explained that wunder the United States (US) code,
economcally distressed areas are defined as those areas with an
unenpl oynent rate that is one percentage point higher than the
nati onal average. In Al aska, all areas of Alaska neet this
definition except for the North Slope Borough, the Fairbanks
North Star Borough, the Minicipality of Anchorage, the Cty and
Borough of Juneau, the Gty of Sitka, and the Ketchi kan Gateway
Bor ough.

MR. RICHARDS referred to a slide on page 3 of the handout,
titled “DOL Unenpl oynent Data”, which he said lists the areas of
the state along with current unenploynent rates in each area.
He read sone unenpl oynent rates as of Decenber 2008, such as the
Yukon- Koyukuk at 16.2 percent, the Al eutians East at 20.8
percent, and the Prince of Wles-Quter Ketchikan at 16.5
percent. He related that the slide represents enphasis areas,
yet the proposed |egislation does not prescribe that a defined
anount of noney nust be spent in the economcally depressed
regi ons of the state.

1: 16: 35 PM

MR. RICHARDS, in response to Representative Doogan, offered that
the language in the federal bill acts as essentially intent
| anguage from the Congress to the state DOT&PF s that instruct
them to identify projects that neet the goal of the economc
stinmulus package, which is to create jobs in the economcally
di stressed areas nationw de. Thus, the DOT&PF s goal in Al aska
is to identify projects which will create jobs in areas with the
hi ghest | evel of unenploynent in the state.

1:17: 05 PM

MR. RICHARDS referred to a map titled “Alaska Construction &
Transit Projects Stimulus & STIP 2009”. He explained that 60
percent of the projects listed on the map fall wthin the
federal definition of economcally distressed areas. Thus, nany
projects are statewi de rural projects. He identified mainline

hi ghway projects include projects on the Parks, Richardson, and
Al aska Hi ghways. However, he specified that some projects fall
in the urban areas or Southeast Al aska. QG her projects fall
within the North Slope outside of the economically distressed
ar eas. He reiterated that Congress did not give the DOI&F a

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 5- February 5, 2009



defined figure that it nust neet. In further response to

Representative Doogan, M. Ri chards explained that hi s
presentation will also cover funding in both the House and
Senate versions of the federal bill, as well as specific

statew de projects that the DOT&PF has identified.
1:18: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNCQZ related her wunderstanding that the Lynn
Canal Hi ghway project 1is currently wunder litigation. She
inquired as to whether that project is eligible for the economc
stimul us funding.

MR. RICHARDS responded that the DOT&PF is awaiting a ruling in
the lawsuit. He explained that the legislature has provided
approximately $110 mnmllion from federal and state funding
sources to construct the first portion of the road. He pointed
out that state funds can not be replaced with new federal funds
for the project. He indicated that a portion of the project
that still needs work is the road work north of Slate Cove.

VR. RICHARDS referred to slide 6, titled “Use or Lose

Provision". Under HR 1, the Congress denmands fast use of funds,
such that 50 percent of funds nust be used within 90 days or
funding wll be redirected to other states, he stated. He

pointed out that the DOT&PF has identified nore projects in
Al aska than the projected designated funding. Additionally, it
is possible that Al aska may be able to use other states' nonies,
he surm sed.

1:21: 05 PM
MR. RICHARDS, in response to Representative Johnson, answered

that the House version of HR 1 states that econom c stimnulus
funds nmust be obligated within 90 days to neet the “use or |ose”

provi si on. He reiterated that the DOT&PF nust enter into a
contract that it has followed all the processes up to the point
of actually letting a bid award with a contractor. At that

point, the FHWA can certify that Al aska has net Congresses’
gui del i nes. He nentioned that the DOT&PF' s goal is to award
bids for the 2009 construction season.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if it would be realistic to
conplete the design and award a bid within 90 days.

MR. RICHARDS answered that the DOI&F has projects that are
designed and the departnent is actively working on projects to

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 6- February 5, 2009



ready them to the point of letting the contract to prospective
bi dders. He related that the object is ensuring that the
“bureaucracy background” is conpleted so the DOI&PF can advi se
the FWHA that it has net the requirenents. He explained that
the DOT&PF will conplete a STIP amendnent, which he anticipated
woul d be released in a few days. He highlighted that the STIP
anendnent process takes 90 days so the DOT&PF has conpeting
efforts for its staff to acconplish the tasks. He nentioned
that the DOT&PF s staff is working nmany hours to acconplish the
necessary tasks to enable the state to use the econom c stinul us
f unds.

1: 23: 21 PM

CHAIR WLSON rel ated her understanding that to neet eligibility,
that the DOT&PF nmust have undergone the environnental assessnent
process, obtained the necessary permts, and designed any of the
proj ect s.

MR. RICHARDS agreed with Chair WIlson. Additionally, he related
that the right-of-way process to ensure land is owned by the SOA
must al so be conpl et ed. He highlighted that the projects nust
be at the stage of construction. In further response to Chair
Wl son, M. Richards acknow edged that the projects would not
have gone out for bid award since the DOT&F nust have the

funding for the projects. He pointed out that the Senate
version of HR 1 has different tinelines than the House version
of the bill, which he offered to review

1: 25: 16 PM

MR. RICHARDS, in response to Representative Johnson, answered
that the DOT&PF nust obligate at |east 50 percent of the funding
allocated to the state wthin 90 days. Additionally, the
funding not used in the first 90 days, nust be obligated by
2010.

1: 25: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN recalled the legislature funded a |arge
Capital Inprovenent Projects and that a General Obligation (GO
bond proposal also passed |ast year. He asked what w Il happen
to capital budget project tinelines given the limted nunber of
DOT&PF staff and the huge conmmtnment required to handle the
federal stinmulus funding projects.

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE -7- February 5, 2009



MR. RICHARDS answered that the DOT&PF is working with the
i ndi vidual design squads, and the <consulting community to
determ ne how to use outside resources to advance the projects
“already in the pipeline.” The DOT&F has exam ned the Genera

ol i gati on bond package and the effort needed to reach the point
of construction. He surm sed that nost of the GO Bond projects
are in the design phase for the next 12 to 18 nonths. He again
noted that the DOI&F is in the process of conpiling bid
docunents that neet state standards on those projects so they
can be put “out on the street.” He related that the DOI&F has
been holding discussions to ascertain the workflow for the
consulting conmunity and contractors, and how to work together
to achieve efficiencies to use the federal funding. He said
that the DOT&PF staff is energized and “rising to the occasion.”

1: 28: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN inquired as to whether the construction
industry is “stretched out pretty far now” He surm sed that
t he DOT&PF assesses the construction industry |evels.

MR. RICHARDS recalled that the DOT&PF has held conversations,
even in advance of the proposal for federal econom c stinulus
funding, with construction conpanies in Southeast and Interior
Al aska. He related that the proposed stinmulus funding projects
have good geographic distribution stretching from Prudhoe Bay to
Ket chi kan. He said that due to the geographical distribution of
projects, contractors have the capabilities of performng the
work. He nentioned that the DOT&PF has noticed nore conpetition
on recent bids for facilities. He highlighted that Al aska has
seen a downturn in sonme industries, but the federal spending
will help to “ranp wup” the -econony and provide nore job
opportunities.

1: 31: 10 PM

CHAIR WLSON surnised that what was not stated is that the
DOT&PF will need to inport contractors fromthe | ower-48.

MR. RICHARDS answered that the DOT&PF will not preclude anyone
from bidding, but the federal economic stimulus funding is a
nati onwm de package that wll affect contractors across the
nati on. He nentioned that price of asphalt |ast sunmer and the
hi gh cost of oil that adversely inpacted the refining process of
asphal t . Since nore effort went into refining fuel than for
asphalt use, the prices of asphalt stayed high, he surm sed. He
highlighted that the Flint HIlls Refinery desires better

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 8- February 5, 2009



economni cs. He expressed concern whether enough asphalt will be
avai | abl e.

1:32: 40 PM

MR. RICHARDS, in response to Representative Doogan, referred
back to slide 7, titled "Mintenance of Effort”. He offered his
belief that Governor Palin is in favor of federal funding to
provide for transportation needs that have a benefit for the
nati on. In this case, the Dalton H ghway, and portions of the
Al aska Highway are projects that can help in preparation of
Al aska gasl i ne.

CHAIR WLSON, in response to Representative Doogan, recalled
Governor Palin said that she is overall against the federal
stinmulus package, but if other states are taking advantage of
the fundi ng, that she would al so do so.

1:34:28 PM
REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN inquired as to whether M. Richards is
confident Governor Palin wll take the necessary steps to

certify the funding in order for the state to qualify.

MR. RI CHARDS responded that he was instructed by the governor to
identify the challenges that the DOT&PF has with respect to the

conditions in HR 1. He said that the provision for
certification has recently conme up and that he has not had a
direct conversation with the governor about it. He highli ghted

that the DOT&PF is tracking the legislation and that new
requi renents are added on an hourly basis.

1:35:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON inquired as to whether sonme stinmulus
funds could be appropriated directly to comunities.

MR RICHARDS stated that he wll address that during this
presentati on.

1: 36: 09 PM

MR. RICHARDS reiterated that the certification referred to slide
7, titled "Miintenance of Effort". He explained that governors
are required to certify that the state will nmintain state
funding schedul ed for highways, which nust extend to Septenber
2010. He related that many other states have state funded

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 9- February 5, 2009



prograns and rely on gasoline tax revenue to provide funds for

their highway prograns. However, the downturn in the econony
and fewer people driving has resulted in less incone for many
st at es. He opined that l|less gas tax collected places sone
states in a difficult position. Sone states are voicing their
concern about the tine constraints in the proposed bill, since
non-certification will trigger a | oss of funds entirely.

1:37:22 PM

MR. RICHARDS referred to slide 8, titled "Big Picture", pointing
out that out of an $829 billion stinmulus total, $45 billion is
schedul ed for transportation. He said he guesses that Al aska

woul d receive about $500 mllion for highways, aviation, and
transit prograns.

MR. RICHARDS referred to slide 9, titled “How Much Fundi ng”, and
stated that HR 1, the House version, is nuch better for Al aska.
He pointed out that in terns of highway and aviation funding
projects, the state would receive substantially nore funding
He pointed out that set asides exist for Anchorage Metropolitan
Area Transportation Solutions (AVATS), and the Fairbanks
Metropolitan Transportation System (FMATS), which receive about

10 percent for both comunities in total. He offered that
funding is for use on roads in those conmunities. He rel ated
that funding for enhancenents is set at $7.4 mllion for

si dewal ks, bi ke paths, and waysi des.
1:38:58 PM

MR. RICHARDS, in response to Representative Guenberg, offered
to provide the commttee wth a |egal definition of
enhancenent s.

1: 39: 22 PM

MR. RICHARDS continued by stating that in the House version of
HR 1, that the state’s share for highways and bridge assets is
estimated at $187 mllion.

MR. RICHARDS, in response to Representative Guenberg, stated
that “CMAQ refers to congestion mtigation and air quality. He
related that the House version does not contain a specific
amount, but the Senate version is set at $79.6 mllion. In
further response to Representative Guenberg, M. R chards
expl ai ned that CMAQ identifies when portions of the state do not
nmeet air quality designations.

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE -10- February 5, 2009



RON KING Capital Prograns, Division of Program Devel opnent,
Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF),
answered from the audi ence that Anchorage’'s air quality is fine,
but that Juneau and Fairbanks have sone issues.

1: 41: 02 PM

MR. RI CHARDS expl ained that the issue that Juneau has is in the
Mendenhall Valley from wood snoke, as is the problem in
Fai r banks. He related hat HR 1 would provide $74 nmillion for
transit, wth AMATS designated to receive $40 mllion for

transit opportunities. He nentioned a subset for $9.5 nillion
for vehicles such as buses and commuter vans, and about $25.8
mllion for ferries and trains. He reiterated the funding tine

constraints.

MR. RI CHARDS hi ghlighted the funding in the Senate version of HR
1. He related that the Senate version reduces the funding for
bridges to $131.5 mllion, of that $23 mllion for AMATS, and
$5.1 mllion for FMATS, zero funding for enhancenents, and $5.2
mllion for CMAQ wth approxinmately $80 million for state and
non- MPO r oads.

1:43: 07 PM

MR RICHARDS, in response to Chair WIson, offered that to
reduce air quality inpacts from wood snoke, consunmers in
Fai rbanks coul d use natural gas fromthe proposed gas pipeline.

1: 44: 02 PM

JEFF  OTTESEN, Director, Division of Program Devel opnent,
Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF),
answered that the backlog for CMAQ projects is snmaller. Thus

the DOT&PF will need to “scranble” to find projects, he stated.
He related that Fairbanks would nake the decision on projects
under federal law. He offered that the DOT&PF woul d di scuss the
matt er with its air quality partner in Departnent of
Environnmental Conservation (DEC) to identify projects. He
hi ghl i ghted that Fairbanks and Juneau were just designated | ast
fall as non-attainnment areas, and it takes about two years for
DEC to performits analysis and to determne strategies to use
the CMAQ funds. He noted that the state is in the early stages
of its planning process. In response to Representative Johnson

M. Otesen answered that AVATS and FMATS will only have 75 days
to use any federal stinulus funding or “lose it.”

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE -11- February 5, 2009



MR. RICHARDS, in response to Representative Johnson, highlighted
that the HR 1 provides an enphasis for economcally distressed
areas, but does not designate or set aside specific funds for
t hose areas. However, AMATS and FMATS funding is designated, he
rel at ed.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON inquired as to the effect on state roads
due to the AVMATS and FMATS share.

MR. RICHARDS answered that the universe of projects that are
available to neet the tineline is relatively small. He rel ated
any projects that are ready in Anchorage and Fairbanks could be
f unded. He discussed sone projects on the denn H ghway,
including rut repair from mle 34-42; and sone projects on the
Ri chardson H ghway in the Fairbanks North Star Borough. He
expl ained that the decision making process is based on the stage
of the project devel opnent.

1:49: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON inquired as to whether any project in
Anchorage and Fairbanks that are bid ready, but are not on the
list.

MR. RI CHARDS answered by explaining funding for some Anchorage
road projects. He offered that Johns Road has not been designed
yet. He related that if AMATS is not able to neet its 75-day
timeline, the DOT&PF could proceed with projects such as an
overlay on Mnnesota Drive to address the “rutting challenges.”
He offered that DOT&PF would then “backfill” the AMATS for
devel opnent of the John’s road project.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON inquired as to whether “backfill” would
be considered noving funding from a state ©project and
suppl anting funding with the econom c stimulus package funding.
He asked for clarification between “backfill” and supplanting
f undi ng.

MR. RI CHARDS answered that the “rut repair” for Mnnesota Drive
in Anchorage could be rapidly devel oped since the scope of the
project is considered “mll and overlay” work. He expl ai ned
that the project would not require an environnental assessnent
and woul d not *“disturb” any ground. Instead, the rutted asphalt
wll be skimed off and new asphalt would be applied to the road
surf ace.

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE -12- February 5, 2009



1: 51: 53 PM

MR. OTTESEN interjected that the federal rules allow the DOT&PF
to nove a STIP project ahead and use economic stinulus funding
and nove stinulus funding back to a STIP project so long as |ong
as it happens in FY 009. Thus, the specific tinmeframe under
di scussion is the May to August 2009 period, which is a short-
term wi ndow. He opined that in Anchorage the DOT&PF proposes to
do that just so that Anchorage “does not lose its stimnulus
dollars.”

MR. OITESEN opined that the only available projects that he is
aware of in Anchorage are nore “mll|l and paves.” He added that
the way the bill is structured, the anmount of noney given to the
Metropolitan Planning Oganizations (MPGs) is defined in |aw
Thus, if the state attenpts to provide nore econom c stimnulus
funding to the MPCS, then the DOT&PF does a disservice to the
remai nder of the state. He further opined that HR 1 is very
clear that the funding is to be shared between the state, the
MPCs, and non-MPO communities with an enphasis on economcally
di stressed areas. He highlighted that the DOT&PF s job is to
bal ance those needs in the context of the |anguage in the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if projects in Wangell, Ketchikan
or Juneau that would fit that criteria. He further inquired as
to whether the departnent is “taking in the whole picture” to
review projects in terns of how quickly the projects can happen
that will also nmeet short and long term needs of these
comunities. He suggested that M. Otesen could provide this
information at a |later date.

1:54: 11 PM

CHAIR WLSON related her wunderstanding that the DOI&F has
al ready discussed the economic stimulus funding with AMATS.
Since AVMATS is not certain it can find projects that fit their
nore limted criteria, the DOT&PF woul d use the AVATS funding to
fund projects so the funding is not | ost.

MR. RI CHARDS agr eed. He remarked that the DOT&PF has di scussed
with AMATS and FMATS to determne how best to capture the
funding to put Al askans to work.

CHAIR WLSON related her understanding that nore projects exist

than the state anticipates receiving in the federal economc
stimul us funding.

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE -13- February 5, 2009



MR. RICHARD answered yes, that the goal is to identify current
projects that neet the challenges the Congress inposed. Thus,
the total possible projects identified represent nore than the
anticipated funding in the event that a problem arises and a
sel ected project cannot be conpleted. Addi tionally, the DOT&PF
wll be ready to nove forward on other projects in the event
that other states cannot use their federal economc stinulus
f undi ng.

1: 56: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked whether his district has any
additional projects that would qualify, other than those listed
on the handout titled “Alaska Construction & Transit Projects
Stimulus & STIP 2009”. He suggested that the DOT&F could
provide himwith the information |ater.

1:57:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG i nquired as to whether the DOT&PF needs
any changes to any state statutes in order to facilitate the
transfer of federal econom c stinulus funding.

MR. RICHARDS answered that he is not aware of any additional
authority. He explained that the DOT&PF will present to the
| egislature a suppl enmental appropriations bill that wll
identify that the departnment is seeking legislative authority to
receive funds for these projects. He stressed that the funding
is 100 percent federal funding. In further response to
Representative Guenberg, M. R chards answered that the DOT&PF
will not require any other statutory changes.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ rel ated her understanding that the Federal
H ghway Adm nistration (FHWA) trust fund is bankrupt. She
expressed concern that future STIP projects m ght be affected.

MR. OTTESEN answered that the econom c stinulus package will be
funded from the federal general fund and not from the FHWA He
shared her concern about the status of the FHWA trust fund. He
pointed out that the DOT&PF is witing a STIP anmendnent for the
stimulus bill that covers 2009, followed by a new STIP to cover
2010 to 2013. He said, “Wre going to wite that STIP not
really knowing or having a very fuzzy crystal ball as to what
that future funding is, but | wll say this. | don't think
Congress will let this program go into the dustbin of history.
It’s just really too inportant to the nation’s econom c health.™

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE -14- February 5, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE MJUNOZ asked for a definition of stimulus fast
award and sti nmul us sl ow awar d.

MR. RI CHARDS answered that the fast award relate to the projects
that nust be obligated in 90 days and the slow award relate to
projects that nust be obligated in 18 nonths. He referred back
to the slide titled, “How Mich Funding” and to the colums
| abel ed House HR 1 and Senate S. 1. He also referred to the
bottom of the slide to the line “Use or Lose Rule.” He pointed
out the differences between the bill versions such that the
House version of HR 1 has a |limt of 90 days for fast awards and
18 nmonths for slow awards, whereas the Senate version has a
limt of 6 nonths for fast awards and 12 nonths for slow awards.

2:01:34 PM

MR. RICHARDS, in response to Representative Johansen, expl ained
that funding would also be eligible for ferries and trains. He
related that the STIP includes projects that could absorb the
entire $25.8 mllion included in the House version. In further
response to Representative Johansen, M. Richards explained that
some of the DOT&PF projects provide ancillary benefits to the
Al aska Railroad Corporation (ARRC) such as at-grade road

Crossi ngs. He remarked that the DOT&F uses FHWA funds to
provi de safety inprovenents. However, he said he was not aware
of the ARRC processes or prograns. He recalled testinony given

to the House Finance Committee referred to nmmintenance
agreenents for road and rail crossings.

MR. OTTESEN explained that the ARRC receives fornula funding
from the Federal Transit Admnistration (FTA) as well as
ear mar ks. He opined that the FTA funds are included in the
DOT&PF s STI P based on a fornula set by the Congress.

2:06: 07 PM

MR. RI CHARDS conti nued. He remarked that the proposed funding
for Aviation is set at $231 million in HR 1 and up to $84.7
mllion in the Senate version. He related that approximtely 27
rural projects have been identified totaling about $271 mllion.
He explained that approximately 12 possible projects totaling
$105 million have been identified for the International Aviation
Pr ogram He highlighted that the Senate version reduces the

overall program from $3 billion to $1.1 billion. He mentioned
that the DOT&PF nonitors the federal bill on a daily basis. He
remar ked that any aviation funding will go through the Federal
Aviation Admnistration (FAA), which wll parcel out funds

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 15- February 5, 2009



t hrough discretionary projects. Thus, the decisions to select
aviation projects to fund from federal econom c stinulus funding
will be made by the | ocal regional FAA office.

2:08: 05 PM

MR. RICHARDS, in response to Representative Johnson, referred to
a mp titled “Al aska Construction & Transit Projects Stinulus &
STI P 2009”. He indicated the map identifies the “Stimulus Fast
Awar d” projects and “Stinulus Slow Award” projects. He surm sed
that if the DOT&PF went from a 90 day to a 6-nonth provision,
that the departnment would likely capture projects listed in the
sl ow award. He highlighted that the senate version of the
federal bill requires that projects nust be obligated in 12
nmont hs instead of 18 nonths. Thus, sonme projects that could be
acconplished in 16 to 18 nonths could not be conpleted in the
more |imted tinmefrane. In further response to Representative
Johnson, M. Richards remarked that the DOT&F s goal is to show
projects that met the nost aggressive and conservative tinelines
that the “Congress is throwing at us.”

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked whether the DOT&PF has a list of
FAA projects under consideration and whether the departnment nade
formal recomendations to the FAA on projects.

2:10: 07 PM

CHRI STI NE KLEIN, Deputy Comm ssioner of Aviation, Ofice of the
Comm ssi oner, Departnment of Transportation & Public Facilities
(DOT&PF), answered that her office has been working closely with
the FAA. She said she anticipates a mnimum of $122 nmillion in
fast track projects, wth an additional amount for the
| nt ernati onal Aviation Program totaling about $200 million. She
surmsed that it is unlikely that the state would receive that

much fundi ng. In the event the tineline is expanded further,
t he DOT&PF would have nearly $400 million ready. She remarked
that “everybody is scurrying, the rules are changing.” She

surm sed many of the rules haven't yet been defi ned. Ms. Klein
stated that the DOT&PF s goal is to have the projects ready to
go, that staff is working round the clock to reach the
departnment’s goal. She highlighted that projects are located in
every region, with nost in rural areas. Ms. Klein nentioned
that the DOI&PF has a map that it has been using internally,
which she offered to provide to the commttee in the next few
days, once the governor has signed off on the map.

2:12: 26 PM

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 16- February 5, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said that he is primarily interested in
knowi ng which projects the DOI&PF is “pushing for” since the
legislature is not involved in prioritizing the aviation
proj ect s. He inquired as to the status of several capital
i nprovenent projects in his district.

M5. KLEIN explained that the FAA uses a review process simlar
to the one that the FHWA use for its projects. She offered that
many of the aviation projects can take up to ten years to go
t hrough that process. She related that nost of the projects are
ones that have been through the planning process. She
reiterated that the FAA has nore discretion in ternms of the
types of projects such as runway safety areas, surface
mai nt enance. She opined that having FAA involvenent is helpfu

since it also gives the DOT&PF a greater range of eligible
proj ects.

2:14: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nentioned that sonetinmes a federal
agency will look to state law to define a term He inquired as
to whether the DOT&PF could keep in mnd that the |egislature
could adopt sonme definitions that mght help nake projects
eligible for the federal econom c stinulus funding.

CHAIR WLSON highlighted that changing a definition in one area
m ght “wreck” a nunber of other areas.

2:16: 23 PM

MR. RICHARDS referred to a slide titled “Steps Taken Already"”
He stated that the DOT&PF has been proactive and has identified
a universe of weligible projects that can neet the federal
criteria. Further, the DOT&PF has prioritized the list and has
taken steps to anend the STIP nunmber 18. Additionally, the
DOT&PF has authorized the work needed to get projects bid ready,
as well as that it has prepared a supplenental budget request,
he nenti oned.

2:17:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whet her the department could seek
funding for the extra overhead.

MR. RICHARDS explained that the legislature has authorized
existing project funds to work for admnistrative costs. He

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE -17- February 5, 2009



related that the DOT&PF has sufficient CIP funds to performthat
wor k, and hopes to work efficiently to do so.

2:18:34 PM

MR. RICHARDS referred to a slide titled “Further Steps Needed”.
He said that the DOT&F has conpleted designs, permts, and

other clearances for projects on the “fast list,” or those
projects that would need to be obligated by April. He outlined
the steps that will be taken to nmeet the federal requirenments
for the economc stinulus funding. He stated that public
corment will be taken on the STIP anendnent nunber 18, to allow
time to submt the STIP to the FHWA as well as the FTA for final
approval . He highlighted that it is inportant to note that two

federal agencies are involved. He nmentioned that the DOT&PF has
been consulting wth the federal agencies, who are working
cooperatively with the departnment. He explained that the DOT&PF

will then be ready to enter into Federal A d Agreenments for
projects on the “fast list.” He opined that the agreenent,
which is the actual contract or obligation, wll satisfy the
Congr essi onal requirenent. Finally, the DOT&PF will issue bid

advertisenments for the projects on the “fast list.”
2:19: 38 PM

MR RICHARDS referred to a slide titled “How Wre Projects
Sel ected”, and explained the process. He summarized that the
DOT&PF exam ned the eligibility of projects, the rapid timng
expected, reviewed projects in terms of the econonmically
di stressed area criteria, and the mandatory set asides required
in the proposed federal bills. He highlighted that the proposed
econom ¢ stinmulus package does not waive the requirenents in |aw
for the STIP or the National Environnental Policy Act of 1969
( NEPA) .

MR R CHARDS referred to a slide titled “Stinmulus Funds
Prerequisite” that shows the typical 10-year tineline for
projects and breaks down the sequence necessary for the
environnmental, design, ROW prior to the construction phases and
project conpletion. He highlighted that it is wvirtually
i npossi ble for a new project to neet the stinulus tineline.

2:21: 55 PM
MR RI CHARDS referred to a slide titled “Criteria to

Prioritize". He related that the DOT&PF exam ned the nandatory
set-asides, the governor’'s prioritization to the Congress wth

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 18- February 5, 2009



respect to the projects need in terms of the natural gas
pi pel i ne readi ness.

2:22:16 PM

MR RICHARDS, in response to Chair WIson, <clarified that
mandatory set asides refer to AMATS and FMNATS. He added that
t he DOT&PF exam ned projects that were devel oped for inproving
hi ghway safety, exam ned the economc distress criterion. He
offered that the DOT&PF also |ooked at how it could |everage
other dollars, with an enphasis on creating jobs for the 2009
construction season.

MR. RICHARDS referred to a slide titled “Fairbanks and
Anchor age". He stated that the two MPGs, the AMATS and FMATS
will select projects within their jurisdictions. He related
t hat DOT&PF wor ks cooperatively with the MPGCs. He offered that
the same rules apply to the MPOs and the projects are subject to
a 75 day obligation period instead of 90 days. He related that
the MPGs nust go through a Transportation |Inprovenent Plan (TIP)
that denonstrates the projects wll be going into the
construction phase, as well. He said that $72 nmillion is sub-
allocated to the two MPOs in HR 1

2:23: 47 PM

MR. RICHARDS referred to a slide titled “Wiy did DOT look to
Exi sting Projects.” He reiterated that projects have already
been started, nust neet the federal eligibility rules, and many
of the necessary steps have already been taken. He surm sed
that the DOT&PF projects can be obligated in 90 days, and a
[imted anount of them qualify for the federal econom c stinulus
f undi ng. He pointed out that the existing projects in the STIP
al so have strong community support.

2:24:16 PM

MR RICHARDS referred to a slide titled “Summary of Wrk
Sel ected”. He summarized that the DOT&PF anticipates that the
federal economic stinmulus funding will include: 272 center line
mles of roads resurfaced, 10 bridges replaced or repaired,
partially fund 2 new ferries, wll allow ferry rehabilitation

and 2 new termnm nals.
MR. RICHARDS, in response to Representative Johnson explained

that the list furnished to nenbers list two bridges in Juneau,
consisting of one leading to the Silverbow Basin and the other

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE -19- February 5, 2009



in Mendenhall Valley. He also nentioned that there are two off-

system bridges in the Matanuska Susitna Borough on the list. He
related that these bridges were all devel oped under federal
processes.

2:25.: 47 PM

MR. RICHARDS stated that sone safety projects wll include
inproving lighting, and installing roundabouts. He noted
i mproved transit projects will add passing | anes, and sonme buses
and vans will be provided for approximately eight conmunities
and inprovenents will be nade to two international airports and

up to 18 rural airports.
2:26:10 PM

MR. RICHARDS, in response to Representative Johansen, agreed
that the projects for the 272 center niles fit into the category
of “resurfacing.” He highlighted that while the tinelines on
the resurfacing projects are short, that the specific type of
resurfacing does not tend to enploy a |ot of people as conpared

to the nunber of jobs for constructing a new project. In
further response to Representative Johansen, M. Ri chards
expl ained that the 272 center line mles does include sonme road

mles for enbanknment work and |aying new pavenent such as al ong
the Parks Hi ghway in Southcentral Al aska. He noted that the
Par ks Hi ghway project has already been devel oped, and that the
envi ronnent al inpact statenent, ROW and design work has al ready
been conpleted over a three to four year tinme period. In
response to Chair Wlson, M. Richards clarified that all of the
projects are listed on the map titled “Alaska Construction &
Transit Projects Stinmulus & STIP 2009”.

2:29: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN rel ated his understandi ng that about $175
mllion in projects along three sections of the Dalton H ghway
wer e proposed for the econom ¢ stimulus funding.

MR. RICHARDS agreed that the governor did send a letter to the
Congress to identify her priorities along the Dalton H ghway,
Al aska H ghway projects, and a Parks Hi ghway project.
Additionally, she identified work on the Kodiak Launch Facility.
He remarked that those projects are included on the “fast list”
portion of the map.

2: 30: 45 PM

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 20- February 5, 2009



MR. RICHARDS clarified that the Alaska H ghway is the eastern
border with Canada and runs into Delta Junction, sonetines
referred to as the Al can Hi ghway.

2: 30: 58 PM

MR. RICHARDS referred to a slide titled “Legislature’'s Role.”
Al federal funds, including nost of the funds for the AMATS and
FMATS nust be appropriated by the |egislature. He stated that
the DOT&PF is currently working with the Ofice of Managenent &
Budget (OVB) on an appropriations bill. He mentioned that the
DOT&PF has an advantage since it is famliar with the federal
funding processes while sone other states nmust determ ne what
authority they have in order to access the economc stinulus
f unds.

2:31:41 PM

MR. RICHARDS, in response to Representative Doogan, answered
that the work identified in the slide titled “Sumrary of Wrk
Sel ected” corresponds to the list of projects on the map titled
“Alaska Construction & Transit Projects Stinmulus & STIP 2009”
and is inclusive of the projects on map. In further response to
Representative Doogan, M . Richards explained that t he
resurfacing roads category on the summary slide is a broad
category that |unps some rebuil ding and repavi ng projects.

2:33:43 PM

MR. RICHARDS, in response to Representative Johnson, reiterated
that the DOT&PF has nore projects ready than it anticipates wll
be funded. He agreed that if projects currently contained in
the STIP are built nore quickly due to the economc stimnulus
funding that will also free up funding so that other projects
contained in the STIP wll proceed through the queue nore
gui ckly to construction.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON inquired as to whether resurfacing roads
is the best use of the econom c stinmulus funding as opposed to
sonme ot her projects.

MR. RICHARDS explained that the DOT&PF grappled wth the
criteria to identify which projects should proceed He agreed
that safety is paranmount to everyone. He related that the
| egi sl ature appropriated general fund nonies to address portions
of the denn H ghway. The DOT&PF is augnenting that funding

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE -21- February 5, 2009



with economic stimulus funding to conplete additional portions
of the denn H ghway since Al askan drivers routinely conplain
about its condition. In further response to Representative
Johnson, M. Richards responded that the DOT&PF commr ssioner and
the governor have not specifically intervened to request a
priority for the A enn H ghway projects.

CHAIR WLSON related her understanding that the DOT&PF is
attenpting to be prepared in case other states m ght not be able
to use their funding in a tinely basis.

MR. RI CHARDS agr eed.
2:37:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN inquired as to whether the DOT&PF
narrowed down the list and if the commttee could obtain a copy
of all the projects that qualify.

MR. RI CHARDS offered to provide a list of the STIP projects that
the departnent has had “in the pipeline.” In further response
to Representative Johansen, M. Richards reiterated that the
projects he is referring to are projects that have been through
the federal process. The projects have previously been in the
STIP and have received legislative authority to advance to this
st age.

2:39: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked for clarification on the need for
excess appropriation in order to potentially capture extra
econom c¢ stinmulus funds from other states. He related his
understanding that it gives the DOI&F nore “w ggle roont if
addi tional funding becones available. He inquired as to whether
the excess authority provides the DOT&PF with nmore flexibility.

MR. OITESEN responded that if the DOT&PF s authority exactly
mat ched the econom ¢ stinmulus funding, that instances in which a
project was slowed by a federal permt requirement or ROW
| awsuit, the state would | ose the dollars. He highlighted that

the federal program requires that the DOT&PF nust have the
ability to nove fromproject “A” to project “B” to capture those
dollars in within a fiscal year. He stressed that the DOT&PF
needs to have the flexibility. He acknow edged that it “can be
a sore point when a project slows down.” He remarked that

projects are slowed down due for external reasons not under the

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE -22- February 5, 2009



departnment’s control. He pointed out that many agencies have
gover nance over our projects.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN inquired as to whether the DOT&PF has
enough excess appropriation for the economc stinulus package
proportional to the stinmulus or if it will need nore authority.

MR. OITESEN expl ained that the DOT&PF is analyzing the list of
proposed projects for the econom c stinulus package against the
current |egislative appropriations. He enphasized that in sone
cases the projects have already been submtted in the current
Cl P. In other instances, the DOT&F nmay need additional
appropriations since project cost has risen. Therefore, the
appropriation request will be a conbination of projects that do
not need any appropriation, some that mght need appropriation
to cover the shortfall, and a third class of projects that need
| egi sl ative appropriation. He estimated that the DOT&PF request
for excess appropriation includes about 30 percent nore. He
indicated that the DOI&PF is basing its decision on the belief
that some states wll have a hard tine neeting the 90-day
deadl i ne. The excess appropriation will help the state have
nore | everage, he surm sed.

2:44:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN related his understanding that if the
econom c stimulus funding for Alaska was set at $100 mllion,
that the DOT&PF would request $130 mllion in |legislative
aut hori zation under the theory that the DOI&F mi ght need nore
funding or in the event that other states cannot find projects
to meet the stringent federal guidelines.

MR. OITESEN agr eed. He indicated that is essentially how the
program wor ks each year.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN inquired as to whether that excess
authority would be tied to projects.

MR. OTTESEN answered that it is actually nore conplicated. He
expl ai ned t hat t he DOT&PF al so requests an unnaned
appropriation. He related a scenario in which a project in
Anchorage was set at $10 nmillion, but the bid was received at
$12 mllion. He enphasized that the DOT&PF mnust have flexible
authority or it would not be able to award the project.

CHAIR WLSON stressed the inportance of each district receiving
its fair share.

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 23- February 5, 2009



MR. OITESEN, in response to Representative Johnson, explained
that in a routine cycle the DOT&PF does not ask for 30 percent
excess authority. That calculation is for the specific econonic
stimul us package. He further explained that the authority is
not technically dollars, but instead 1is permssion. He
expl ained that the federal funding is received and is matched up
with authority. He highlighted that the legislature gives its
authority to receive and expend federal funding. He indicated
that the legislature gives legislative authority on a class of
projects to receive expend federal funds prior to the
Congr essi onal appropriation cycle. Thus, the authority “sits on
the shelf.” However, the authority is not “cash,” he said. The
DOT&PF nust have permssion to funds to the legislative
appropri ation. He then said, “And then we have a project.” In
further response to Representative Johnson, M . O tesen
explained that the appropriations are accounted for in the
capi tal budget docunents “to the penny.”

2:49: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN i nquired as to how nmuch excess authority
t he DOT&PF currently has avail abl e.

MR. OTTESEN expl ained that he does not have the current excess

figure. He offered that the legislative authority is given to
the DOT&PF by project. He related that the DOT&PF s excess
authority will largely be used by the econom c¢ stinmulus funding.

He stated that the projects will be good for the state. He also
stated that projects did not nmake it on the list of potential
stimulus projects wll benefit from other projects being built.
He related a scenario in which a person is standing in a |long
line at a novie theatre hoping to nmake the fourth seating.
However, a bus picks up people for the first three seatings of
the film Thus, the person waiting is line is now first in line
to see the film He surmised that the projects not selected for
the federal economic stimulus funding will still benefit from
it.

2:50: 59 PM
MR. OITESEN, in response to Representative Johansen, stated that

the DOT&PF does not generally over request in the annual
process. He related that due to inflation the cost of a project

may i ncrease. Thus, the DOT&PF ends up wth excess
appropriation each year due to inflation. He explained that has
been true this decade. He remarked the econom c stinulus

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 24- February 5, 2009



package creates a set of circunstances that is tinme sensitive.
Therefore, the DOT&F is making the request for additional
appropriation authority, he stated.

MR. OTTESEN rel ated that each August every state nust report the
nunmber of projects that will be conpleted by Septenber 30. He
enphasi zed that Al aska has historically has been “a net w nner”
in that process. He opined that there hasn’'t been a year that
the state did not garner additional funding from other states,
whi ch has benefitted communities all across the state.

2:53: 07 PM

MR RICHARDS referred to slide “Adding O her Projects”. He
offered that the projects would have been “in the works for the
past 2 to 7 years.” He reiterated that new projects are hel ped
too, that conmunities are clanoring for projects and sonme of the
projects wll advance. He opined that approximately a year’s
worth of funding will occur. He also stressed that rules are

tight and are fixed in | aw
2:54: 57 PM

MR. RICHARDS referred to a slide titled “Sub-Allocation." He
said that the DOI&F cannot sub-allocate funds directly to
comunities. He stated that funds will flow through the FHWA
and the DOT&PF nust follow the federal rules. He offered that
the only true set-asides are for the AMATS and FMATS.

MR RICHARDS referred to a slide titled “Wy Tw STIPs
Under way” . He recapped that the 2009 STIP anmendnent, and the
2010- 2013 STIP are required in order to expend federal dollars.

2:57:15 PM

MR RICHARDS referred to slide titled “lnpact to DOT&PF s
Wor kl oad” . He stated that in order to obligate approximtely
$240 million by My 2009, and $450 nillion between June to
August 2009 for the DOI&PF s regular program as well as to
obligate the remainder of the stinmulus funding between Cctober
2009 to August 2010, the DOT&PF nust increase its workload by 50
percent .

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN i nquired as to how the DOT&PF can handle a

50 percent increase in its overall workload w thout hiring nore
staff.

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 25- February 5, 2009



MR RICHARDS answered that the DOT&F will rely on its
consultants to assist them with the additional workload. In
further response to Representative Doogan, M . Ri chards
expl ai ned that the funds are expended through the ClP.

2:59: 05 PM

MR. RICHARDS offered that the DOT&PF s PowerPoint overview and
fact sheets are linked to its website. He identified the
uniformreporting location (URL) is http://ww.dot. state. ak. us.
3:00: 55 PM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Transportation Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 3:00
p. m

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 26- February 5, 2009



